ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON FI SHERI ES
March 28, 2003
8:33 a.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Paul Seaton, Chair
Representati ve Peggy Wl son, Vice Chair
Representative Cheryll Heinze
Representati ve Dan Ogg

Represent ati ve Ral ph Sanuel s
Representative David CGuttenberg

MEMBERS ABSENT
Representative Ethan Berkow tz
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 98
"An Act relating to sport fishing seasons and areas for persons
under 16 years of age."

- MOVED HB 98 QUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 22
"An Act relating to commercial fishing permt brokers; and
providing for an effective date."”
- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON

BILL: HB 98
SHORT TI TLE: SPORT FI SHI NG SEASONS FOR YOUTH
SPONSOR( S) :  REPRESENTATI VE( S) SAMUELS

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

02/ 14/ 03 0214 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

02/ 14/ 03 0214 (H FSH, RES

03/ 28/ 03 0669 (H FSH RPT 6DP

03/ 28/ 03 0669 (H DP: OGG HElI NZE, W LSOCN,
SAMUELS,

03/ 28/ 03 0669 (H GUTTENBERG, SEATON

03/ 28/ 03 0670 (H FN1: ZERQ( DFQ

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -1- March 28, 2003



03/ 28/ 03 0670 (H) FN2: ZERQ( DPS)
03/ 28/ 03 (H) FSH AT 8:30 AM CAPI TOL 124

W TNESS REG STER

KELLY HEPPLER, Director

Di vision of Sport Fish

Al aska Departnment of Fish & Gane

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified that the departnent is very
supportive of HB 98.

KATHY HANSEN

Juneau- Dougl as Fi sh and Gane Advisory Committee

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in full support of HB 98.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-22, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIR PAUL SEATON called the House Special Conmittee on
Fisheries neeting to order at 8:33 a.m Representatives Seaton

Wl son, Samuels, and Guttenberg were present at the call to
order. Representatives Heinze and (Ogg arrived as the neeting
was in progress.

HB 98- SPORT FI SHI NG SEASONS FOR YOUTH

CHAI R SEATON announced that the only order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 98, "An Act relating to sport fishing seasons and
areas for persons under 16 years of age."

Nunmber 0067

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS, sponsor of HB 98, nentioned that a
provision exists in statute for the Board of Gane that gives
authority to the Board of Gane to establish age-specific youth
hunts for those [not nore than 17 years of age] - an age at
which a license to hunt is not necessary. He informed the
conmittee that this allows the Board of Gane to have father-and-
son hunts, for exanple and to limt the nunber of hunters in
areas where aninal populations are limted; it also allows young
children the opportunity to go out and enjoy what Al aska has to
of fer. He stated that HB 98 is a simlar provision, but
pertains to the Board of Fisheries.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 2- March 28, 2003



Number 0164

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS said that HB 98 is ainmed nostly, but not
solely, at urban environments, so that kids in the cities who
don't have a chance to go out and catch a sal non can have access
to that experience. He referred to several possibilities, such
as stocking king salnon at Canpbell Creek or having a kids' day
at Ship Creek, saying that HB 98 would allow the Al aska
Departnent of Fish & Gane (ADF&S) and the Board of Fisheries to
better nmanage the fisheries and would also afford kids the
chance to enjoy the sport of fishing. Representative Sanuel s
concl uded by saying "this is apple pie, M. Chairnman."

Nunber 0214

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON said she thought that kids 14 years old
and under did not need a license, but had been inforned,
informally, by commttee nenbers that the age was 16 and under.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS said this bill does not nmandate but
rather sinply gives the Board of Fisheries the authority to
allow for a fishery for persons under the age of 16. He pointed
out that the Board of Fisheries already allows for a fishery for
senior citizens - for persons 60 years of age and ol der.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked if this mght mean that that kids
who were under 16 years of age could go out fishing with their
dads, but the dads couldn't fish.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS confirnmed that this was so.
Number 0302

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS referred to a silver [coho salnon] run in
a stream that runs through his neighborhood where everybody
fishes, commenting that ADF&G sets the regulatory environnent so
that there are not too many people there. He said that ADF&G i s
concerned about the traffic patterns at that |ocation as well as
at Bird Creek, outside of Anchorage. He indicated that HB 98
assists with limting the nunber of fishermen as well as
allowing "the neighborhood kid to walk down there and catch a
fish without being tranpled to death at a Ship Creek--type
situation.”

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON suggested that this bill mght encourage
nore participation on the part of the dads.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 3- March 28, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS said there are a |lot of people who |ive
in Anchorage who cannot get out of town to go to where the
salnon are; he reiterated that this bill offers an opportunity
"for a kid to catch a fish."

Nunber 0411

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS added that there was a zero fiscal note
acconpanying the bill.

Nunber 0422

CHAI R SEATON referred to the Honer Spit Lagoon, which at tines
is open for snagging and becones a real rat race. He noted that
HB 98 allows for kids to fish on a different day, or perhaps for
hal f of a day, saying that this would be advant ageous.

Number 0492

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS nmentioned that the bill has nore to do
with famlies than it has to do with fish

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON asked if the bill only pertained to
Al askan [residents].

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS said that this would apply to anybody,
noting that a license is not necessary if a person is under the
age of 16.

CHAIR SEATON said the person would need to denonstrate that
he/ she was under the age of 16.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS wondered how ADF&G determnes the truth
of a situation in which a person clains to be under the age of
16 and therefore does not possess a |icense.

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON simlarly wondered how proof of a person's
age would be confirnmed, since [a person] under 16 years of age
does not have identification.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS indicated that if a person is under 16
years of age, he/she can already go fishing without the need for
a license. He said if a problem [regarding proof of age]
exists, it exists independently of this bill; this bill does not
exacerbate that problem

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -4- March 28, 2003



Nunmber 0603

KELLY HEPPLER, Director, Division of Sport Fish, Al aska
Department of Fish & Gane, testified that the departnent is very
supportive of HB 98. He said that in working for the Board of
Fisheries for nore than 20 years, there were many discussions
from users and advisory conmttees indicating interest in the

capabilities being expressed in this bill. He pointed out that
this gives the Board of Fisheries an option; it does not issue a
mandat e. He suggested that the procedure would involve the

normal public process of adopting the proposal and would involve
the |l ocal conmmunities.

Number 0707

MR. HEPPLER continued by saying that enhancing the opportunity
to "get kids excited about fishing" contributes to Al askan
traditions such as hunting and fishing, suggesting that
involving kids away from conputers and malls in urban areas can
be a positive thing. He said he was thinking of the Homer Spit,
where there m ght be an opportunity for a "take your
daughter/son fishing day," wherein other people could be cleared
out of the area and just the kids could be there with their

famlies. He nentioned Canpbell Creek as an area that is now
very healthy, since there are about 700 or 800 fish over the
escapenent goal . He suggested that wth 60,000 or 70,000

regi stered anglers in Anchorage, opening up the area to adults
woul d cause sonme concern. However, opening it up for one or two
days of "kid fishing" would be "a neat opportunity for a kid to
get a king salnon in a small stream" because he/she nmay not
have that opportunity anyplace else. He also nentioned Twin
Lakes in Juneau as another area where fish are stocked. M.
Heppl er concluded his testinony by referring to a letter of
support in the conmmttee packet that was from the Board of
Fi sheri es.

Nunmber 0835

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS asked M. Heppler how the correct age of
a youth was determ ned.

MR. HEPPLER responded that because a |ot of high school kids in
Anchorage are required to have identification cards, there is
sonme sort of identification being carried. He stated that in
fairness, oftentines there is faith and trust when interview ng
ki ds when you "look themin the eye" because there are sone kids
who | ook like they are 22 or 23, and sone who | ook younger than

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 5- March 28, 2003



16. M. Heppler said that when there's been a problem in the
past, for exanple, when sonebody under 16 is seen breaking an
obvious |law, the parents are always call ed. He said the parent
woul d be called right there fromthe stream bank. He added that
this hasn't really been a problemin the past.

CHAI R SEATON asked if there was any anticipation of fines being
suggested by the Board of Fisheries. He also asked if the Board
of Gane experienced the types of problens being discussed.

Number 0973

MR. HEPPLER said that to his know edge the Board of Gane had one
hunt outside of Fairbanks that he thought turned out pretty
well. He reported that 15 or 16 npose were taken that woul d not
have been taken otherwise and that there were no safety
conplaints; people were happy and the parents were happy. He
said [regarding HB 98] he'd like to get a note out, letting
peopl e know of the opportunity - certainly to the advisory
commttees - indicating a "heads up" and then involving the
public process around the state for discussion.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON offered that alnost everybody who travels
on the airlines these days needs to have sone sort of
i dentification. She said that it is probably fairly standard
that kids also need to have identification.

MR. HEPPLER said he hoped that they all have identification,
adding that when the kids are small, identification has been
obtained through the [Alaska State Troopers.] He said that
al t hough "not everybody has that,"” identification has not been a
problem in the past. He commented that the departnent doesn't
like to put kids in handcuffs to haul themoff to jail.

Number 1075
KATHY HANSEN, Juneau-Douglas Fish and Gane Advisory Conmttee,

testified that the advisory conmttee conpletely supports HB 98.
She stated that especially in an area such as Juneau, where

things are getting nore restrictive, it is increasingly
difficult to provide good opportunities for the younger kids to
fish. She noted that on one of the streans that kids go to,

there was a request for catch and release. She enphasized that
it is slowy beconmng nore difficult for fanmilies to go out and
have those fun fishing days because the need to regul ate occurs
nore and nore. She stated that this bill would be a good too
for the Board of Fisheries to use in the future in order to

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 6- March 28, 2003



conbat sonme of that. Ms. Hansen concl uded by saying that other
advisory commttees, such as those in Wangell and Ketchikan,
are supportive of this bill as well, even though they have not
taken an official action.

Nunber 1232

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON noved to report HB 98 out of comittee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es. There being no objection, HB 98 was reported from the
House Special Comrittee on Fisheries.

ADJ OQURNMVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Special Comrittee on Fisheries neeting was adjourned at 8:55
a.m

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -7- March 28, 2003



